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Chairman’s statement

| am pleased to present the Group's 2007 annual report TEG has continued to make excellent progress and | am
pleased to report a significant upturn in revenues in the latter half of 2007 during which TEG saw a healthy upturn
in sales of waste services at its own facilihes and was pleased to secure a further Local Authority sale to Gwynedd
Council Whilst disappointed with trading in 2007, during which there were a number of delays and
disappointments beyond our control, the Group resumed its excellent progress in the second half of the year The
Board's confidence in TEG’s growth prospects during 2008 and beyond has been reinforced by the performance of
the business during the latter half of 2007 and early 2008 and the Board believes TEG remains on track to become
the composting technology provider of choice  The change to Landfill Tax to be implemented in April 2008, an
annual increase of £8 per tonne of waste, has resulted in a significant increase in demand in 2008

In addition, | was delighted in Quarter 1 of the current year to announce the conclusion of the Advanced Works
Order ("AWOQ") for the Greater Manchester Contract (9 January 2008) and the first development project under
Verdia Horticulture Limited It 1s also hugely encouraging that | can report TEG has secured waste contracts with
several Local Authorties including Calderdale Council, Preston City Council and Oldham Council, as well as
secunng a significant contract with Veolia With the expansion of contracts with Sita and Perth & Kinross Councll,
and a strong pipehne of near term sales, | am delighted to report that both Perth and Sherdley Farm are
approaching full capacity

As we announced during 2007, there were a number of factors that influenced trading performance Whilst
delighted with our success in Greater Manchester, the Group had to make significant increases to its technical,
engineenng and commercial resources, In preparation for the contract, yet without generating revenues owing to
the delays in contract completion Trading in the first half at Perth was disappointing and as the Group brought the
Todmorden plant on hine, it was impacted by the resultant start-up losses generated as the plant ramped up In
capacity Finally, the phasing of capital projects resulted in significantly lower capital sale revenue than in 2007

However, 2007 full year turnover of £2,169,000 (2006 £3,559,000) against the 2007 intenm figure of £536,045
reflects the significant growth in the second half of the year Losses were £3,034,000 compared to £1,257,000 in
the same period In 2006 No dividend s recommended

These accounts are the first full year to be prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) The IFRS transition has been completed Two adjustments to reported loss before tax for the year ended
31 December 2006 have been identfied, those being

* Reversal of amortisation of goodwill (£213k), and
+ Capitalisation of interest on plant construction projects (E29k)

Greater Manchester Waste PFI Contract

The Advanced Works Order (*“AWQ?"} for the confract, itself worth £523,000, was received in January 2008 and
detalled design work 1s underway for the first two plants to be constructed, namely Rochdale and Bredbury | am
pleased to repert that significant progress has been made towards the conclusion of the main contracts and the
Board anticipates that the AWO will be extended significantly to allow procurement to commence on the first
contract in early April, and full completion of contracts by 28 Apnl 2008 On award of the extended AWO, TEG
expects to move immediately into the procurement and construction phase of the Rochdale plant where planning
permission is already in place

The scope of the project remains largely unchanged with TEG due to construct four plants between 2008 and 2011
to process 175,000 tonnes of waste per annum The 3 further plants to be constructed by TEG are progressively
scheduled for construction between the final quarter of 2008 and the first quarter of 2011 TEG's customer witl be
Costain who 10 turn 1s retained by the Vindor/Laing consortium

It 1s anticipated that revenues will be in excess of £35m aver the penod of the contract, including the revenues from
the AWO, which will become a part of the main contract on completion TEG did not recognise any revenues from
this contract in 2067, but will be able to do so in 2008
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Verdia Horticulture Limited

During 2007, TEG formed a joint venture company with Glendale Managed Services Limited The new company,
Verdia Horticulture Limited (“Verdia™), has been formed to focus on the horticulture market, manufacturing high
grade compost and fertiliser products to be sold inte the horticulture sector  Its focus will be on building and
operating medium scale composting facilities, typically 10-15,000 tonnes per annum to produce horticultural grade
products for sale to Glendale and to regional horticultural markets It 1s anticipated that Verdia will build between 6
and 8 facilities over the next 2 to 3 years, geographically spread throughout the UK  It1s anticipated that the capital
required will be funded largely by bank finance This venture follows 12 months of successful collaboration between
the parties

TEG will supply TEG Silo Cage plants to Verdia and will provide technical expertise and support, as well as
marketing services for waste supply to the plants This 1s another significant endorsement of TEG and its
technology and offers an opportunity for the Group to establish itself in the horticultural products sector

The first plant to be constructed by Verdia will be at Hillbarton, a Glendale site near Exeter This 14,000 tonnes per
annum facility 1s expected to be completed by the end of Quarter 3 of 2008

Plant Sales and Construction

During the first half of 2007, TEG completed the handover of the plants built for The City and County of Swansea
and for Banham Compaost Limited

The construction of a third facility, for Gwynedd Council, commenced in September 2007 and | am pleased to say
remains cn schedule to be handed over in April 2008 The Gwynedd Council contract is for a 5,000 tonnes per
annum facility and TEG's scope of work includes the bullding and surrounding infrastructure in addition to the TEG
Silo Cage plant and equipment The total value of the contract 1s approximately £1 45m

The Tedmorden facility was completed te schedule and the first 2 ines were successfully commissioned in May
and June With the exception of some remedial work required to the building air extract system, we have been
very pleased with the performance of the plant

A second 12-cage line was Installed at the Sherdley facility, increasing capacity from 6,000 tonnes per annum to
approximately 12,000 tonnes per annum and a new waste receipt building was completed in October 2007

The final modifications were completed in Perth to comply with the conditions of the Pollution Prevention and
Control (PPC) permit conditions introduced by the Scottish Environmental Protection Agency (SEPA) in 2006
These included the installation of bullding air extract equipment and a product off-take gantry The Board believes
the plant 1s the first to achieve the higher PPC standard of licensing introduced in Scotland and that it remains the
only plant icensed to date

Group Plant Operations

The Group secured an interim waste management contract with Greater Manchester Waste Limited to process
green and garden waste at its Todmorden and Sherdley Farm facilities The contract is for a period of 2 years from
May 2007 with a further 1 year extension option Over the first 2-year period, TEG will receive 44,000 tonnes of
waste and the contract value will be approximately £900,000

In addition, the Group secured contracts of varying lengths from four local authorities for the supply to TEG of
separately collected kitchen waste to Sherdley Farm and Todmorden The local authorities include Preston City
Council, Calderdale Councit and Oldham Borough Council A contract was also secured with Veolia for up to 9,000
tonnes per annum of garden waste Mare recently, the contract with Sita and Perth & Kinross Council to process
co-mingled garden and kifchen waste was expanded by a further 2,000 tonnes per annum

| am pleased to report that the plant at Perth has run well and has achieved its planned capacity Despite it being
necessary to inform the financial markets in June 2007 that the waste and locat authority markets in Scotland were
developing more slowly than anticipated and sales of higher value waste had been below plan, | am pleased to
report that the second half performance was greatly encouraging and the Perth business was cash positive for the
penod With the recent contract gains, the plant 1s expected to be operating at full capacity by May 2008
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Following completion of the waste receipt facility, the Sherdley Farm plant ramped up to full capacity and that
capacity was quickly filled Demand in the North West 1s very strong and the Board 1s confident that Sherdiey Farm
will perform well in 2008

Plant performance at Todmorden has been good and volume of waste supply to the plant has been excellent,
though a large proportion has been green waste The proportion of higher value waste 1s increasing with new sales
and it1s anticipated that the existing capacity will be filled by Quarter 2 of 2008 and capacity will need to be
increased by mid 2008

R&D contracts

Further R&D work has taken place for Shell in conjunction with the University of Westminster If successful, further
prlot scale work will be undertaken at Perth

The United Utilities tnals on sewage products were completed successfully and the Group awaits the outcome of a
review of direction

Fundraising

In preparation for the Greater Manchester contract and in anticipation of future build own and operate opportunities,
TEG successfully raised £11,000,000 before expenses of £629,000, the cost of which has been charged against
the share premium account The year end cash balance was £8,916,000

Natural Organic Fertiliser Company (“NOFCO”)

NOFCO was established in January 2007 to focus on markets for compost, both to ensure secure supply options
for TEG and to leverage increased value from what we believe to be a very good gquality, nutrient nich product
Whilst still in its infancy we are very pleased with some immediate successes and with the influence the Company
1s able to exert in the market place

NOFCO carned out full scale crop growing tnals at Sherdley Farm that were a resounding success The yield from
the maize crop was some 100% greater than the regional average and demonstrated the high value of the TEG
product

Market Update

The market continues to grow strongly as both Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme (“LATS”) targets and Landfill
Tax make an impact on the Local Authornity and pnvate sector markets

As previously announced, LATS targets increase annually and the level of Local Authonty activity grows
continuously However, TEG has observed that the biggest influence in the last 6 months has been the Impending
nse in Landfill Tax ("LFT"} The Chancellor announced in 2007 that LFT would nse in April 2008 by £8 per tonne of
waste landfilled Together with annual cost increases by operators, this will result in price increases of £3-10 per
tonne This nise in LFT will also be imposed 1in 2009 and 2010 bringing the tax to a total of £48 per tonne by 2010,
an increase of 100% over the 3 year period TEG has observed a step change in market activity and recycling as
the April deadline approaches
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Management

The Group has continued to strengthen its business development, engineering, operational and technical teams in
advance of the anticipated construchon programme for Greater Manchester and other projects that are close to
completion This has of course been balanced by the knowledge that revenues have not yet commenced for these
projects but it 1s important that the Group 1s prepared for the increase 1n activity on completion

Ron Mcllwraith, an expernienced senior engineenng and projects manager, joined the TEG Environmental Limited
Board as Engineerning Director in October 2007 in anticipation of the Greater Manchester contract and other
construction projects currently in the pipeline

Future Prospects

As previously announced, the Group’s pipeline of opportunities i1s stronger than ever and it 1s actively bidding for in
excess of 30 significant contracts in addition to a large number of smaller waste sales opportunities In addition,
the market continues to strengthen and 1s projected to do so for the foreseeable future The success of the TEG
facilities to date and the endorsement demaonstrated by the Greater Manchester, Verdia and Gwynedd contracts
further strengthens the Board's belef that the Group has an exciting future with a strang outlook for trading in 2008
and beyond

N

Nigel Moore
Chairman
2 Apnl 2008




Report of the directors

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2007

Nature of operations and general information
TEG Group Plc and its subsicharies’ (the Group") principal activities continue to be the design and production of
Silo-cage plants for sale to third party clients, and the design, builld and operation of TEG owned faciliies

TEG Group Plc 1s the Group's ultimate parent company It is incorporated and domiciled in Great Britain  The
address of TEG Group Plc's registered office, which is also its pnncipal place of business is Houston House, 12
Sceptre Court, Sceptre Point, Preston, PR5 6AW, United Kingdom TEG Group PIc's shares are listed on the
Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange

TEG Group Plic's consolidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (£), which 1s also the
functional currency of the parent company

Results and dividends
The loss for the year after taxation amounted 1o £3,034,000 (2006 £1,257,000) The Directors do not recommend
the payment of a dividend leaving the amount of £3,034,000 (2006 £1,257,000) to be transferred to reserves

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the Group’s performance dunng the year and expected future developments are contaned in the
Charman’s statement on pages 3 to 8 Information relating to the environment and employees 15 set out in this
report on pages 8, 9 and 11 This information has been prepared solely to assist shareholders to assess the
Board's strategies and their potential to succeed [t should not be relied on by any other party, for other purposes
Forward-locking statements have been made up to the date of this report  Forward-looking statementis should be
regarded with caution because of the inherent uncertainties in economic trends and business nsks

Strategy and objectives
TEG's pnincipal strategy remains to grow the business by a combination of

= Build Qwn Operate projects (BOO's) which provide sustainable long term revenue and allow TEG to take
advantage of nsing prices, and
= Plant sales which provide large revenues and cater for markets which prefer to run thew own operations

OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT
There are a number of potential nsks and uncertainties which could have a material impact on TEG's long term
performance TEG has a comprehensive system of nsk management instailed in all parts of its business

Commercial nsk

Commercial nsk 1s dentified and reported to the Plc Board and 1ts management s delegated to the subsidiary
Beoard The Group monitors market actwity through commercially avalable systems including trade press
monttoring and tender monitoring systems  Market information 1s electronically circulated amongst key managers

The Group has established price models and all prices are approved by a director  All capital sales prices are
approved by the Chief Executive and Finance Director who consider market pricing, nsk and target margins in
establishing prices for each project Major contract tenders are managed by tender teams that as a mimmum
include a Business Development Manager and the Commercial Director

Key commercial nsks far the business have been identified, including security and price of waste streams to TEG
plants, stabiity of end markets for compost products, secunty and stability of the Group's engineering supply
chain Standard contracts have been established for key suppliers to ensure commercial rngk 1 adequately
addressed and suppliers are monitored and audited against an established supplier review process As TEG 1s
exposed to changes in relationstups with both customers and supplers, it 18 a key task for the operational
management to maintain and develop relationships with customers and suppliers and where possible TEG
mamntains at least two supphers for key equipment




+ Key performance indicators

TEG monitors KPls n relation to all its capital projects and operations and performance 1s reported to the
subsidiary Board and the Plc Board on a monthly basis

The Group uses the following KPIs to evaluate the success of its business

Plant operations
» Plant utiisation - Plant utilisation 1s defined as the percentage of actual tonnage throughput aganst the
planned tonnage throughput
*  Waste mix ratio - Waste mix ratio 1s defined as the ratio of animal by products tonnage against total
tonnage
= Average gate fee per tonne
= Average cost per tonne

Capital projects
* All prices are detailed by individual component
= Installation programme versus key milestones
* Project cost versus budget
= Post project review process led by the Engineering Director

Competitor risk
TEG monitors competitor activity through trade press, trade exhibitions and customer feedback

Product defect claims

TEG manages product defect risk through
* Clearly defined warranty conditions in contracts, and
* Professional indemnity insurance

Government legislation

TEG operates n an environment encompassing environmental, legal, health and safety, employment and tax
matters TEG 15 committed to complying with each requirement and the clear devolvement of responsibility to
operating management together with the employment of competent advisers supports this requirement Changes
to legisiation are monitored clesely and appropriate actions taken to ensure they are incorporated into our business
poiicies and procedures

RESOURCES

Employees

The commitment, drive and enthusiasm of all TEG’s employees are Its greatest asset and TEG's ability to meet the
demands of customers, suppliers and shareholders is dependent upon their efforts

TEG 15 committed to providng employees with a professional working environment where hard work and
comnutment i1s encouraged and rewarded accordingly

TEG 1s dedicated to providing high guality service to its customers and therefore needs to have the best skilled and
experienced staff avalable within the industry Training, coaching and the opportunity for personnel career
advancement within the Group are important features of how TEG seeks to recruit, retain and develop staff

TEG has continued to invest more resources in developing and training its employees, and has further
strengthened the sales and project delivery team to capitalise on opportunities

TEG incentivises staff through paying market-based salaries, bonuses for individual and Group achievement and
share options for key staff members TEG operates a loyalty based share option scheme




* CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Health and Safety

The Group ts committed to high standards of health and safety for all of tts employees The Group's Health and
Safety Policy was reviewed in 2007 and 1s displayed throughout the Group's workplaces Health and safety
objectives and targets have been established at relevant functions and levels within the organisation

During the course of 2007, the Health and Safety management system adapted across the operating business has
been reviewed and enhanced to ensure it 15 sufficiently robust to protect the health and safety of all our employees

Health and safety 1s an agenda item at all Board meetings and the Chief Executive reports all health and safety
matters TEG retains an independent consultant who reports quarterly on health and safety to the Board

It 1s a source of pnde that the Group had no lost time accidents during 2007 The Group strangly believes In the
traning and development of all its employees and believes that this focus on continuous improvement I1s the key to
maintaining this enviable record in the waste management industry

Environmental Policy

TEG Group PLC recognises the importance of environmental protection and 1s committed to operating its business
responsibly and in comphance with all environmental regulations, legslaion and approved codes of practice
relating to the waste processing industry and the activities of this Group 1t 1s the Group’s objective to operate with,
and to maintain good relations with all regulatory bodies

It 1s the declared policy of TEG Group PLC to carry out all measures reasonably practicable to meet, exceed or
develop all necessary or desirable requirements and to continually improve environmental performance through
implementation of the following

Assessment and regular re-assessment of the environmental effects of the Group’s activities
Assessment and regular re-assessment of the Group’s environmental objectives and targets
Training of all employees and management in environmental issues

Minimisation of the producton of waste

Minimisation of material wastage

Mintmisation of energy wastage

Promotion of the use of recyclable and renewable maternals

Reduction and/or imitation of the production of pollutants to water, land and ar

Control of noise emissions from operations

Minmmisation of the nisk to the general public and employees from operations and activities undertaken by
the Group

This policy 1s communicated to all employees, suppliers and sub contractors and 1s made available to the public

TREASURY RISK MANAGEMENT

Surplus funds are intended te support short term working capital requirements and to place bonds necessary for
build projects  These funds are mvested through the use of short term, medwm term and penod deposits, with a
policy of maximising fixed interest returns as well as providing the flexibility required to fund on-going operations It
Is not a Group pelicy to Invest in financial dernvatives

Although the financial nsks are considered to be mimimal at present, future interest rate, iquidity and foreign
currency risks could anse and the Board will review its existing policies in the coming period

Interest rate risk
Interest rate nsk arnses from
* The fixed element of finance leases where the Group typically uses finance leases for fixed penods of up to
5 years to finance the purchase of assets where it 1s considered to be a more effective use of funds,
* The term loan facility which bears a floating interest rate, and
= (ash and short term deposits which bear floating interest rates

Other bank loans are subject to fixed interest rates




Credit risk
The principal credit risk anses from the Group's trade receivables In order to manage credit risk, the directors set
imits for customers based on a combination of payment history and third party credit references

Liquidity risk
The Group seeks to manage financial nsk by ensuring sufficient hquidity 1s available to meet foreseeable needs
and to invest cash assets safely and profitably

Surplus funds are invested on a short term basis at money market rates and therefore such funds are available at
short notice

Foreign currency risk
The Group does not have any foreign currency denominated trade receivables or payables and therefore 1s not
subject to foreign exchange nsk

Borrowing facilities

In 2006, a bank loan of £426,000 was secured against plant and equipment This loan 1s repayable in 36 equal
instalments at a fixed interest rate of 4 3% The outstanding balance at 31 December 2007 was £213,000 {2006
£355,000)

In addition, a further faciity of £2,000,000 has been secured to help fund the acquisition of the property and the
development costs of the Todmorden project At 31 December 2007, £2,000,000 (2006 £800,000) was drawn
down as a term loan This loan 15 repayable over 180 equal annual instalments commencing in January 2009 The
floating interest rate on the term loan 1s 1 75% above the Bank of Scotland Plc base rate

Interest rate nsk profile of financial assets and habilities

Interest rate

Fixed Floating Zero Total
Financial Assets £ £ £ £
At 31 December 2007
Sterling - 8,861 55 8,916
Trade receivables - - 538 538
- 8,861 593 9,454
Financial Liabilities
At 31 December 2007
Bank loan 213 - - 213
Term loan - 2,000 - 2,000
Hire purchase agreements 36 - - 36
Trade payables - - 646 646
249 2,000 646 2,895

Fair value of financial assets and financial habilities
The fair value based upon the market value or discounted cash flows, of the financial instruments detalled above
was not matenally different from the book values

Fundraising
On 23 Apnl 2007, the Group placed 10,000,000 ordinary new shares of £0 05 per share at a pnce of £1 10 per
share, raising £11,000,000 before issue costs of £629,000

Charitable and political donations
No charitable or political donations were made during the year {2006 £Nil)
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Employee involvement and disabled employees

The Group’s policy 1s to provide equal opportunities to all existing employees and prospective employees TEG
recognises that its reputation 1s dependent on the quality, effectiveness and skill base of its employees and 1s
committed to the fair and equitable treatment of all its employees and specifically to prohibit discrimination on the
grounds of race, religion, sex, nationality or ethnic onigin

Applications for employment by disabled persons are gwen full and far consideration for all vacancies In
accordance with thewr particular aptitudes and abilities In the event of an employee becoming disabled, every
effort would be made to retain them in order that their employment with the Group could continue

The Group has continued its practice of keeping employees informed of matters affecting them as employees and
the financial and economic factors affecting the perfermance of the Group

It 1s the policy of the Group that training, career development and opportunities should be availlable to all
employees

TEG recognises the importance of good communications with employees and acknowledges that there should be
clear channels of communication and dialogue on 1ssues, which affect both business performance and employee's
work lives This 1s achieved through a vanety of media including the Group’s intranet, meetings and a weekly
newsletter

During the year, the Group intreduced a childcare voucher scheme whereby UK employees can elect to recewe
childcare vouchers in lieu of part of their salary in a tax efficient manner

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme which 1s open to all employees
The Finance Director has responsibility for human resource 1ssues within the Group

Payments to suppliers
The Group's policy 1s to comply with the terms of payment agreed with the supplier when terms of business are
established At 31 December 2007, the Group's trade payables represented 83 (2006 99) days of purchases

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
TEG 1s committed to business integnty, high ethical values and professionalism in all its activiies The Board 1s
accountable to the Group's shareholders for good governance and its policies In respect of this are set out below

The Board

At 31 December 2007, the Board was made up of five members comprising two non-executive directors, N § J
Moore and O W Benjafield, and three executive directors, M Fishwick, T Willis and A Heyworth Taking into
account the provisions of the 2006 Combined Code, the Non-Executive Directors are considered by the Board to
be independent of management, each other and free of any relationship, which could matenally interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgement

The Board 1s of sufficient size that the balance of skills and experience ts appropriate for the requirements of the
business and that changes to the Board's composition can be managed without undue disruption

All directors are subject to election at the first AGM following appointment and then to re-election at the appropnate
AGM every three years

11




Board Procedures

The Board met formally 13 times during 2007 All Board members are supplied with information in a form and of a
qualty appropnate to enable them to discharge therr duties Board papers are sent out seven days before
meetings take place There 1s an agreed schedule of matters reserved te the Board for collective decision and
these inciude

» Strategy and management — approval of annual operating and capital expenditure budgets, extension of
the Group’s activities into new business or geographic areas

= Structure and capital — changes to the Group's capital structure, major changes to the Group's corporate
structure, changes to the Group's management or control structure

= Financial reporting and controls — approval of interim and preliminary annocuncements, approval of annual
reports and accounts, approval of reselutions and documentation to be put to shareholders in general
meeting, approval of press releases concerning matters decided by the Board

«  Communication — approval of resolutions and documentation to be put to shareholders in general meeting,
approval of press releases concerning matters decided by the Board

=*  Beoard membership

= Corporate governance matters

The Board has formally delegated specific responsibilites to Board committees, including the Audit and
Remuneration Committees

To enable the Board to perform its duties effectively all directors have full access to all relevant information and the
services of the Company Secretary whose responsibility it 1s for ensuring that Board procedures are followed The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary 1s a matter reserved for the Board Directers have a right to
ensure that any concerns they raise about the running of the Group or a proposed action will be recorded In the
Board minutes

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee 1s chared by N S J Moore and its membership comprises beoth the non-executive directors
and two executive directors, by inwitation It meets on a bi-annual basis and its primary tasks are to receive reports
from the external auditors and to review the preliminary results, interim information and the annual financial
statements before they are presented to the Board, concentrating particularly on accounting pclicies and
compliance, areas of management judgement and estimates, and the monitoring of the cantrols which are in place
to ensure the integrity of the financial information to be reported to sharehclders The Committee has the authonty
to review specific matters relating to internal control on an ad hoc basis and has unrestricted access to the Group's
auditors and ensures that auditor independence has not been compromised The Committee does not consider
that an internal audit function 15 yet required for the Group due to the size of the business

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee 1s chared by N S J Moore and its membership comprises both the two non-
executive directors and two executive directors, by invitation The Committee’s role I1s to set the remuneration
policy for the executive directors and all the staff of the Group Specifically, the Remuneration Commitiee agrees
the principal terms of their service contracts, including salaries and other benefits, such as bonuses paid and share
options, and other terms and conditions of employment The Committee met once during 2007, with all Committee
members attending this meeting

The Committee’s executive remuneration policy I1s designed to attract, retain and motivate individuals to ensure the

success of the Group Remuneration packages are based on a market price pnnciple and are designed to reward
directors fairly for ther contributions
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Share options

Grant of share options are at the discretion of the Board All grants are intended to promote a longer term
involvement in the well-being of the Group and capital growth benefits for option holders Options are not routinely
granted on an annual basis but made on an individual basis to reflect performance, increased responsibilities and
promotions

An Enterprise Management Incentive Share Option Scheme was established on 27 April 2001, granted under the
provisions of Section 62 and Schedule 14 of the Finance Act 2000 This 1s a Group wide scheme and grant options
are at market value

Directors
The directors of the Group and therr interests In the share capital of the Group are listed below All served on the
Board throughout the year Directors interest in share options i1s disclosed in note 9

Ordinary shares of £0.05 each

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
N S J Moore (Charrman) 321,547 291,547
D W Benjafield 50,000 -
Dr A Heyworth 209,482 134,482
M Fishwick 11,000 -
T Willis 11,000 -

The directors retiring by rotation are M Fishwick and DW Benjafield, who being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting

Financial reporting

The directors who have sole responsibility for the preparation and presentation of this report and accounts and
other prnice sensitive public records, seek to prepare those reports 1n a way that represents a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of internal control, including financial, operational and
comphance controls and risk management The Board 1s responsible for reviewing its overall effectiveness of
internal contral  The system 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate nsk and can provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board confirms that there 1s an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing risks faced by the
Group This process was In place throughout the year under review and up to the date of approval of the annual
report

There 1s no formal internal audit department, as the Board does not consider this to be necessary due to the size of
the operations in the Group The Board will keep this decision under review as the Group grows The Finance
Cirector and Chief Executive are currently responsible for relevant control and monitoning procedures  The Board
monitars the Group's significant nsks on an ongoing basis
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Communication with shareholders

The Group recognises the importance of communication with its shareholders to ensure that its strategy and
performance 1s understood This 1s achieved principally through the Annual Report and the Annual General
Meeting The Group's prelminary and intenm results, as well as all announcements 1ssued to the London Stock
Exchange are published on the Group’'s website In addition, a range of other corporate information 1s available to
investors on the Group’s website

The Chief Executive and Finance Director are primanly responsible for direct investor relatons  Formal
presentations are made to institutional shareholders following the announcement of the Group's annual and interim
results The Board recognises that the Annual General Meeting 1s the principal forum for dialogue with private
shareholders and all shareholders are invited to attend  All directors attend the Annual General Meeting and are
available to answer any questions that shareholders may wish to raise

At Annual General Meetings, separate resolutions are propesed on each substantally separate 1ssue and the
number of proxy votes receved for and against each resoluticn 1s announced The Company Secretary ensures
that the votes are properly received and recorded Notices of Annual General Meetings are sent to shareholders at
least 21 days before the meeting

Going concern

After making approprate enquinies, the directors are confident that the Group has adequate resources {o continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reascn, the directors adopt the going concern basis in
the preparation of the financial statements

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

United Kingdom company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and farr view of the state of affarrs of the Group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or
loss of the Group for that period  In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

make Jjudgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the
Group will continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure that the financtal statements comply with
the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for the system of intermal control, for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregulanties

In so far as the directors are aware
» there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are unaware, and
= the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditers are aware of that information
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included

on the Group's website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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Major interest in shares

As at 1 April 2008 the Group had been notified of the following interests in 3% or more, of the Group's 1ssued share

capital

Euroclear Nominees Limited

Vidacos Nominees

HSBC Global Custedy Nominees ACCT 750749
Morstan Nominees Limited

Nortrust Nominees Limited

Chase Nominees Limited

Auditors

Number of ordinary shares

4,513,300
2,686,506
2,348,550
1,688,847
1,677,000
1,575,000

% of issued ordinary share
capital
9 35%
5 56%
4 B6%
352%
347%
326%

A resolution to re-appoint Grant Thornton UK LLP as auditors for the ensuing year will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting in accordance with section 385 of the Companies Act 1985

On behalf of the Board
[/

2 April 2008
T Willis
Finance Director and Company secretary
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" Report of the independent auditors to the members of The TEG Group Pic

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the "financial statements") of TEG Group
PLC for the year ended 31 December 2007 which compnise the principal accounting policies, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated and parent company balance sheets, the consclidated cash flow statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders' equity and notes 1 to 31 on pages 22 to 50 and notes 1 to
19 on pages 52 to 60 These Group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out
therein

This report 1Is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the group financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union, and for preparing the parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdem law and
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of
Directors' Responsibilites

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to
you whether in our opinion the information given in the Report of the Directors 1s consistent with the financial
statements The information given in the Report of the Directors includes that specific information presented in the
Charrman's statement that 1s cross referred from the Business Review section of the Report of the Directors

in addihon we report to you if, In our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, If we have not
received all the infformation and explanations we require for our audit, or if iInformation specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited
financial statements The other information comprises only the Report of the Directors and the Chairman's
Statement We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
matenal inconsistencies with the financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other infformation

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures In the financiai statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the group's and company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the infoermation and explanations which we considered
necessary In order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements
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* Opinion

In our apiion

« the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Unmion, of the state of the group's affarrs as at 31 December 2007 and of its loss for the year then
ended,

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,

« the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom

generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2007,

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act

1985, and

» the information given in the Repert of the Directors 1s consistent with the financial statements

G\M W W\ L'&’f

GRANT THORNTON UK LLP
REGISTERED AUDITORS
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
MANCHESTER

2 Apnl 2008
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" Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2007

Notes
Continuing operations
Revenue 3
Cost of sales
Gross (loss)/profit
Other expenses

Operating loss from continuing operations 4

Finance income 5
Finance costs 6

Loss before tax
Income tax 10

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Retained loss

Loss per share
Basic and diluted (pence) 11

2007 2006
£7000 £'000
2,169 3,559

(2,405) (2,952)
(236) 607

(3,118) (1,964)

(3,354) (1,357)

436 155
(202) (116)
(3,120) (1,318)
86 61

(3,034) (1,257)

(3,034) (1,257)

(3,034) (1,257)

(6 725) (3 757)
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2007

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Interest in joint venture
Property, plant and equipment

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other recelvables
Taxation receivable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current habilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Deferred consideration
Non-current ltabilities

Borrowings
Deferred consideration

Total liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share capital
Share premium
Other reserve
Retained losses

Total equity

Note

12
13
25
14

15
16
10
17

19
20
21

20
21

23

2007 2006
£'000 £'000
2,270 2,270
9,839 7,694

12,109 9,864
234 356
1,106 648
86 61
8,916 2,242
10,342 3,307
22,451 13,171
1,084 1,155
150 156
252 267

1,486 1,578
2,099 213
1,585 1,770
3,684 1,983
5170 3,561

17,281 9,610
2,414 1,902
29,357 19,388
551 327
(15,041) (12,007)
17,281 9,610

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 2 Apnl 2008 and signed on their behalf by

LY
A M\j
M Fishwick
Director

1/

T Willis
Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

for the year ended 31 December 2007

Balance at 1 January 2006

Loss for the year

Issue of new ordinary share capital

Premium on 1ssue of new ordinary share capital

Issue costs

Recognition of share-based payments

Issue of ordinary shares under employee share option plan

Balance at 1 January 2007

Loss for the year

Issue of new ordinary share capital

Prermium on issue of new ordinary share capital

Issue costs

Recognition of share-based payments

Issue of ordinary shares under employee share option plan

Balance at 31 December 2007

Share Share Other Retained Total
capital premium  reserve losses

£'000 £000 £000 £000 €000

1,319 12,310 154 (10,750) 3,033

- - - (1,257) (1,257)

575 - - - 575

- 7,523 - - 7,523

- (445) - - (445)

- - 173 - 173

8 - - - 8

1,902 19,388 327 (12,007) 9,610

- - - (3,034) (3,034)

500 - - - 500

- 10,598 - - 10,598

- (629) - - (829)

- - 224 - 224

12 - - - 12

2,414 29,357 551  (15,041) 17,281
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss after taxation

Adjustments for

Depreciation

Share based administrative expense

Taxation credit recognised in income statement
Interest expense

Investment income

Loss / (profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Increase in trade and other receivables
Decrease / (increase) in inventories

Increase / (decrease) In trade payables

Cash used in operations
Interest paid
Income taxes recewed

Net cash used In operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of business - deferred consideration
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of equipment

Interest received

Net cash used In Investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of share capital
New bank loans raised

Repayment of loan

Payment of finance lease liabilities

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note 2007 2006
£000 £000
(3,034) (1,257}
579 310
224 173
(86) (61)
202 116
{436) (155)
10 (3)
{458) (281)
122 (233)
389 (339)
{2,488) (1,730)
(102} (36)
61 64
(2,529) (1,702)
{300) {300)
{3,259) (6,329)
3 11

436 155
{3,120) (6,463)
10,481 7,661
2,000 426
(142) (71)
{16) (23)
12,323 7,993
6,674 (172)
2,242 2,414
17 8,916 2,242
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2007

General information

TEG Group Plc 1s a Company incerporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 1985 The address
and registered office 1s Houston House, 12 Sceptre Court, Sceptre Point, Preston, PR5 6AW The nature of the
Group’s operations and its principal activites are set out in the Report of the Directors on page 7

The financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (£), which 1s also the functional currency of the
parent company, as this 1s the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates

1. Significant accounting policies

The consoldated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU), including International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
Interpretations 1ssued by the Internaticnal Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {IFRIC) Practice 1s
continuing to evolve on the application and interpretations of IFRS  Further standards may be 1ssued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and standards currently i issue and endorsed by the EU may be
subject to interpretations 1ssued by IFRIC

IFRS, as adopted by the EU, differs in certain respects from IFRS as issued by the IASB  However, the
consolidated financial statements for the period presented would be no different had the Group applied IFRS as
Issued by the IASB References to IFRS hereafter should be construed as references to IFRS as adopted by the
EU

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles under IFRS,
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and iiabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported
period Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement basis specified by IFRS for each type of
asset, lability, iIncome and expense The measurement bases are more fully descnibed in the detailed accounting
policies below

The policies have changed from the previous year when the financial statements were prepared under applicable
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP) The comparative information has been
restated in accordance with IFRS The changes to accounting policies are explained in note 2, together with the
reconcihation of opening balances The date of transition to IFRS was 1 January 2006 (transition date)

The Group has taken advantage of certain exemptions available under IFRS 1 ‘First-tme adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards’ The exemptions used are explained under the respective accounting policy

The accounting policies that have been applied in the opening balance sheet have also been applied throughout all
penods presented in these financial statements These accounting policies comply with each IFRS that 1s
mandatory for accounting periods ending on 31 December 2007

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the company and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to
the balance sheet date Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power to control the financial
and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activites The Group obtains and exercises control
through voting rights

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its subsidianes are eliminated Unrealised losses are
also elminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred  Amounts

22




reported In the financial statements of subsidianes have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency
with the accounting polictes adopted by the Group

Business combinations completed prior to date of transition to IFRS
The Group has elected not to apply IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ retrospectively to business combinations
pnor to date of transition

Accordingly, the classification of the combination {acquisition) remains unchanged from that used under UK
GAAP Assets and liabilities are recognised at the date of transition If they would be recognised under IFRS,
and are measured using their UK GAAP carrying amount immediately post-acquisition as deemed cost under
IFRS, unless IFRS requires farr value measurement Deferred tax I1s adjusted for the impact of any
consequential adjustments after taking advantage of the transitional provisions

Joint venture

A Joint venture i1s a contractual arrangement whereby the Group undertakes an economic activity which 1s
subject to joint control with third parties The Group’s Interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for
using the equity method

Under this method the Group’s share of the profit less losses of joint ventures is included in the conselidated
Income statement and its interest in the net assets 1s included in non-current assets in the consolidated balance
sheet Where the share of losses In a Jjoint veniure exceeds the interest in the entity, the carrying amount is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses I1s discontinued unless there 1s a commitment by the Group to
make further investment The interest in the entity 1s the carrying amount of the investment together with any
long-term interests such as subordinated debt that, in substance, form part of the net iInvestment in the entity

Goodwill

Goodwill representing the excess of the cost of acquisition over the farr value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired, I1s capitalised and reviewed annually for impairment Goodwill 1s carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses

Intangible assets
Intellectual property rights are included at cost and amortised in equal annual instalments over a period of 10 years
which 15 their estimated useful economic ife Provision 1s made for any impairment

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment 15 stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment No
depreciation 1s charged duning the penod of construction

Borrowing costs on property, plant and equipment under construction are capitalised during the period of
construction based on specific funds borrowed

Disposal of assets
The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognised in the income statement

Depreciation
Depreciation Is calculated to write down the cost less accumulated depreciation of all property, plant and
equipment other than freehold tand over their estimated useful economic lives The rates generally applicable are

Vehicles 3 years straight line
Silo-cage systems 156 years straight line
Fixtures and fithngs 25% reducing balance
Plant and machinery 25% reducing balance
Buildings 4% straight line

Material residual value estimates are updated as required, but at least annuzlly, whether or not the asset 1s
revalued
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impairment testing of goodwill and property, plant and equipment

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units) As a result, some assets are tested individually for
imparrment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level Goodwill I1s allocated to those cash-generating
untts that are expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination and represent the lowest
level within the Group at which management monitors the related cash flows

Goodwill, other individual assets or cash-generating units that include goodwill are tested for impairment at least
annually All other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

An impairment loss 1s recegnised for the amount by which the asset's or cash-generating unit's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount s the higher of fair value, refleching market
conditions less costs to sell, and value in use based on an internal discounted cash flow evaluation Imparrment
losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the
carrying amount of goodwill  Any remaining impairment loss 1s charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash
generating unit  With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist

Taxation
Income tax credit represents the tax currently receivable in respect of research and development tax credits

Taxable loss differs from loss before tax as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible The Group's asset for current tax I1s calculated using the rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability method Deferred tax labilities are generally
recognised for all temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utihsed Such assets and
habilities are not recognised If the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill nor from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and llabiites in a transaction that affects
neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax labihties are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on interest in subsidiaries and
assoclates, and interest in joint ventures where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it 15 probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets I1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
IS no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods in which the timing
difference are expected to reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and when they relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and habilities on a net basis
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Research and development
Expenditure on research (or the research phase of an internal project) 1s recognised as an expense In the penod in
which it 15 incurred

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making allowance for obsolete and slow
moving items

Cost includes materials, direct labour and an attributable proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal
levels of activity Cost 1s calculated using the weighted average method Net realisable value 15 based on
estmated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion

Revenue

Revenue 1s measured by reference to the far value of consideration received or recevable by the Group for
goods supplied and services provided, excluding VAT and trade discounts Revenue 1s recognised upon the
performance of services or transfer of rnisk to the customer

Rendering of services relating to processing waste

When the outcome of a transaction involving the processing of waste can be estimated reliably, revenue
associated with the transaction 1s recogrised when the Group recewes the waste, being the point at which it
fulfils its contractual obhgation to the customer The outcome of the transaction 1s deemed to be able to be
estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied

" the amount of revenue can be measured reliably

. it 1s probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity

" the Group receives the waste, being the point at which it fulfils its contractual obligation to the customer
and

. the costs incurred In processing the waste that can be measured reliably

Construction contracts

Contract revenue reflects the contract activity during the year and 1s measured at the fair value of consideration
received or recevable When the outcome can be assessed reliably, contract revenue and associated costs are
recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the balance sheet date The stage of completion of the contract at the batance sheet date 1s
assessed by reference to completed key milestones, those being

Design

Procurement

Component manufacture

Enabling works

Civil Engineenng

Bullding fabrication

Mechanical and electrical installation of vanous camponents of the TEG Silo-cage plant
Functional testing

Commissioning

Where the outcome of a long term contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue I1s recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it 1s probable will be recoverable, and contract costs are recognised as an
expense In the period in which they are incurred  In the case of a fixed price contract, the outcome of a
construction contract 1s deemed to be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied

- total contract revenue can be measured reliably

- it 1s probable that economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the Group

a both the contract costs to complete the contract and the stage of completion at the balance sheet date
can be measured rehably, and

. the contract costs attributable to the contract can be clearly identified and measured reliably so that
actual contract costs incurred can be compared with prior estimates
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The gross amount due from customers for contract work 1s presented as an asset for all contracts in progress
for which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceeds progress billings The gross
amount due to customers for contract work 15 presented as a liability for all contracts In progress for which
progress billings exceed costs Incurred plus recognised profits (less losses)

Full provision 1s made for losses on all contracts in the year in which the loss 1s first foreseen

Interest

Interest 1s recognised using the effective interest method which calculates the amortised cost of a financial asset
and allocates the interest income over the relevant penod The effective interest rate i1s the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset

Employee benefits — retirement benefit costs
The pension costs charged to the income statement are the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the
accounting period

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date

Any exchange differences anising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were inihally recorded are recognised in the income statement in the penod in
which they arise

Leased assets

In accordance with |1AS 17, the economic ownership of a leased asset 1s transferred to the lessee If the lessee
bears substantially all the nisks and rewards related to the ownership of the leased asset The related assetis
recognised at the time of inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments plus incidental payments, if any, to be borne by the lessee A corresponding
amount 1s recognised as a finance leasing lability Leases of land and buildings are spht into land and builldings
elements according to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests at the date of entenng into the lease
agreement

The interest element of leasing payments represents a constant proportion of the capital balance outstanding
and is charged to the income statement over the period of the lease

All other leases are regarded as operating leases and the payments made under them are charged to the
Income statement on a straight line basis over the lease term Lease incentives are spread over the term of the
lease

Share-based payment - equity settled
All share-based payment arrangements granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested prior to 1 January
2006 are recognised In the financial statements

All goods and services received in exchange for the grant of any share-based payment are measured at their
fair values Where employees are rewarded using share-based payments, the fair values of employees’
services are determined indirectly by reference to the fair value of the instrument granted to the employee This
farr value 1s appraised at the grant date

All equity-settled share-based payments are ultimately recognised as an expense in the income statement with
a corresponding credit to "other reserve”

The expense Is allocated over the vesting pericd, based on the best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest Estimates are subsequently revised If there I1s any indication that the number of share
options expected to vest differs from previous estmates Any cumulative adjustment prior to vesting 1s
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recognised in the current period No adjustment 1s made to any expense recognised n prior periods If share
options ultimately exercised are different to that estimated on vesting

Upon exercise of share options the proceeds received net of attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital, and where appropnate share premium

Financial assets

Financial assets are divided into the following categories loans and recevables and financial assets at farr
value through profit or loss Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by management on initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which they were acquired The designation of financial assets Is re-
evaluated at every reporting date at which a choice of classification or accounting treatment i1s avallable

All financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument Financial assets other than those categorised as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs Financial assets categonsed as at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised initizlly at fair value with transaction costs expensed through the income statement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets that are either classified as heid for
trading or are designated by the entity as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition  Subsequent
to inihal recognition, the financial assets included in this category are measured at far value with changes in far
value recognised in the income statement Financial assets onginally designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss may not be reclassified subsequently

Loans and receivables are non-dernvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted In an active market Trade recewvables are classified as loans and recevables Loans and receivables
are measured subsequent to imitial recognition at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impawrment Any change in their value through impairment or reversal of impairment 1s recognised
In the iIncome statement

Provision against trade receivables 1s made when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due to it in accordance with the oniginal terms of those recewvables The amount of the write-
down I1s determined as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows

An assessment for mparrment is undertaken at least at each balance sheet date

A financial asset 1s derecognised only where the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or the
financial asset is transferred and that transfer qualifies for de-recognition A financial asset 1s transferred if the
contractual nghts to receive the cash flows of the asset have been transferred or the Group retains the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the asset but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash
flows to one or more recipients A financial asset that 1s transferred qualifies for de-recognition If the Group
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, or If the Group neither retains nor
transfers substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership but does transfer controt of that asset

Financial liabilities

Financial labilites are obligations to pay cash or other financial assets and are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument Financial habilities categorised as at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded initially at fair value, all transaction costs are recognised immediately in the
Income statement  All other financial habiities are recorded initially at fair value, net of direct issue costs

Financial liabilities are categonsed as at fair value through profit or loss where they are classified as held-for-
trading or designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition

Financial liabilities categonsed as at fair value through profit or loss are re-measured at each reporiing date at farr
value, with changes In fair value being recognised in the income statement  All other financial habilities are
recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest-related charges recognised as an
expense In finance costs In the ncome statement Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or
redemption and direct Issue costs, are charged to the income statement on an accruals basis using the effective
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interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the exient that they are not settled in the
period in which they arise

A financial hability s derecognised only when the obligation 1s extinguished, that 1s, when the obligation 1s
discharged or cancelled or expires

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly
lquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant
nisk of changes in value

Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial habilities or equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangement

Equity

Equity compnises the following

. "Share capital” represents the nominal value of equity shares

. "Share premium" represents the excess over nominal value of the farr value of consideration received
for equity shares, net of expenses of the share 1ssue

. "Other reserve" represents equity-settied share-based employee remuneration untl such share options
are exercised

. "Retained losses” represents retained losses

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarlly take a substantial pertod of time to get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for ther intended use

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the pened in which they are incurred

Critical accounting and judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimates and accounting judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances The
preparation of financial statements under IFRS requires management to make assumptions and estimates about
future events The resulting accounting estimates will, by defimtion, differ from actual results The assumptions
and estimates that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment within the next financial year are

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill 1s iImpaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated The value in use calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order tc calculate present
value

Recognition of revenue and profit on construction project management
Revenue and profit are recognised by reference to the estimated stage of completion to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it 1s probable will be recoverable

Adoption of new and revised standards

Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted

At the date of the authonsation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations, which
have not been appled in these financial statements, were in issue but not yet effective  The directors anticipate the
adoption of these standards and interpretations will have no material impact on the Group's financial statements,
with the exception If 1AS 1, which will effect the presentation of changes in equity and introduces a statement of
comprehensive Income  This amendment will not affect the financial position or results of the Group but will give
rise to additional disclosure The directors anticipate that the Group will adopt these standards and interpretations
an their effective dates
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IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements (revised 2007) (effective 1 January 2009),

IAS 23 Borrowing costs (revised 2007) (effective 1 January 2009)

IAS 27 Consolidation and separate Financtal Statements (revised 2008} (effective 1 July 2009)
Amendment to IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Ansing on Liguidation (effective 1 January 2009)

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Revised 2008) (effective 1 July 2009)

IFRS 8 Operating segments (effective 1 January 2009)

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 Group and treasury share transaction {effective 1 March 2007},

IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements (effective 1 July 2008), and

IFRIC 13 Customer loyalty programmes (effective 1 July 2008)

IFRIC 14 and IAS19 The imit on defined benefit asset, mimmum funding requirements and their interaction
(effective 1 January 2008)

Ll

Explanation of transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

As stated In the 'Basis of preparation’, these are the Group's first consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the measurement and recognition rules of IFRS

An explanation of how the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS has affected the Group's financial position, financial
performance and cash flows s set out helow

IFRS 1 permits companies adopting IFRS for the first ime to take certain exemptions from the full requirements of
IFRS in the transition period These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of taking the following
exemption

+ Business combinations prior to 1 January 20086, the Group's date of transition have not been restated to
comply with IFRS 3 'Business Combinations'

Explanation of reconciliation from UK GAAP to IFRS for the balance sheet and income statement

The adoption of IFRS by the Group has resulted in some reordering and changes to the presentation of certain
balances within both the iIncome statement and balance sheet

Goodwili recognised by the Group on the acquisition of the composting business in Perthshire under UK GAAP
was amortised over a period of 11 years Under IFRS, goodwill 1s not amortised, but tested annually for
impairment The goodwill amortisation charge recognised in accordance with UK GAAP in 2006 was wnitten back

Borrowing costs incurred with regards to the development of the Todmorden facility under UK GAAP were
recognised as Interest expense in the period incurred Under IFRS, borrowing costs which are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset have been capitalised This Includes interest on
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining the qualfying assets

Application of IFRS has resulted In reclassification of certain items in the cash flow statement as follows

1) Under UK GAAP, payments to acquire property, plant and equipment were classified as part of ‘Caputal
expenditure and financial investment’ Under IFRS, payments to acquire property, plant and equipment have been
classified as part of "Investing activities’

2) Income taxes receved by the Group in respect of Research and Development tax credits are now classified as
an operating cash flow under IFRS, however these were included in a separate category of tax cash flows under
UK GAAP

3) There are no other material differences between the cash flow statement presented under IFRS and the cash
flow statement presented under UK GAAP

Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS on the Group’s net income
and equity are set out on the next page

29




Reconcihation of equity at 1 January 2006 (date of transition to IFRS)

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Investments

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other recervables
Taxation recelvable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Deferred consideration

Non-current habilities
Borrowings
Deferred consideration

Total liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capital

Share premium

Other reserve

Retained losses

Total equity

UK GAAP IFRS
£'000 £'000
1,093 1,093
2,270 2,270
3,363 3,363

123 123
366 366
64 64
2414 2,414
2,967 2,967
6,330 6,330
1,033 1,033
22 22
283 283
1,338 1,338
14 14
1,045 1,945
1,959 1,959
3,207 3,297
3,033 3,033
1,319 1,319
12,310 12,310
154 154
(10,750) (10,750)
3,033 3,033
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Reconciliation of equity at 31 December 2006

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Investments

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other recevables
Taxation receivable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current habilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Deferred consideration

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred consideration

Total liabihties

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capital

Share premium

Other reserve

Retained losses

Total equity

UK GAAP  Goodwill Interest IFRS
2006 IFRS3 IAS 23 2006
£'000 £000  £000 £'000

7,564 - 30 7,594
2,057 213 - 2,270
9,621 213 30 9,864
356 - - 356
648 - - 648

61 - - 51
2,242 - - 2,242
3,307 - - 3,307
12,928 213 30 13,171
1,155 - - 1,155
156 - - 156
267 - - 267
1,578 - - 1,578
213 - - 213
1,770 - - 1,770
1,983 - - 1,983
3,561 - - 3,561
9,367 213 30 9,610
1,902 - - 1,902
19,388 - - 19,388
327 - - 327
{12,250) 213 30 (12,007)
9,367 213 30 9,610




Reconciliation of loss for the year ended 31 December 2006

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other expenses
Operating result

Finance income
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax

Loss for the year

Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent
Retained loss

Loss per share
Basic and diluted loss per
share (pence)

UK GAAP Goodwill Interest IFRS
2006 IFRS 3 JAS 23 2006
£000 £'000 £°000 £000
3,559 - - 3,559
(2,852) - - (2,952)
607 - - 607
{2,177) 213 - (1,964)
(1,570) 213 - (1,357)
155 - - 155
(146) - 30 (116)
(1,561) 213 30 (1,318)
61 - - 61
{1,500) 213 30 {1,257)
{1,500) 213 30 {1,257)
{1,500) 213 30 {1,257)
(4 483) 0636 0089 (3 757)
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3. Revenue

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year (excluding finance income — see note 5) Is as follows

2007 2006
£'000 £000
Revenue from builld, own and operate 1,269 885
Revenue from sale to third parties 882 2,650
Other revenue 18 24
2,169 3,559

4. Segment information

For management purposes, the Group I1s currently organised into the following segments Sale to third parties,
Build own operate facilities and Other revenue

Sale to third parties includes the design, production and installation of Silo-cage plants for sale to third party chents

The build, own and operate segment relates to facihties which are owned and operated by the Group These sites
process waste received from customers

Other revenue i1s as a result of research and development work carried out for third parties

The revenues and net result generated by each of TEG Group Pic's business segments are summarised as
follows

2007
Sale to
Build, own third Other Consolidated
and operate parties revenue
£000 £'000 £000 £'000

Revenue 1,269 882 18 2,169
Segment operating (loss) / profit (264) 22 8 {238)
Segment corporate expenses (285) (44) - {329)
Unallocated corporate expenses (2,789)
Operating loss (3,354)
Finance income 436
Finance costs (202)
Loss before taxation (3,120)
Taxation 86
Loss for the year (3,034)

Unallocated corporate expenses include £568,000 in respect of future business development costs
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2006

Revenue

Segment operating (loss) / profit
Segment corporate expenses
Unallocated corporate expenses

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year

Build, own  Sale to third Other Consolidated
and operate parties revenue

£'000 £'000 £000 £000

885 2,650 24 3,559

(131) 723 15 607

{170) (133) - (303)

(1,661)

(1,357)

155

(1186)

(1,318)

61

(1,257)

Unallocated corporate expenses include £186,000 in respect of future business development costs

Other information
2007

Capital additions
Depreciation

Assets
Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets
Consolidated total assets
Liabilities

Segment habilitres

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total habilities

Sale to
Build, own third Other Consolidated
and operate parties  revehue
£000 £'000 £7000 £'000
2,806 - - 2,806
551 - - 551
Sale to
Build, own third Other Consolidated
and operate parties
£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
12,549 518 - 13,067
9,384
22,451
4,591 328 - 4919
251
5170
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Other information
2006

Build, own Sale to third Other Consolidated
and operate parties revenue
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Capital addrtions 5,811 - - 5811
Depreciation 564 - - 564
Builld, own  Sale to third Other Consolidated
and operate parties
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Assets
Segment assets 10,320 315 - 10,635
Unallocated corporate assets 2,536
Consolidated total assets 13,171
Liahilities
Segment habilities 2,965 526 - 3,491
Unallocated corporate habilites 70
Consolidated total habilities 3,661

Geographic segments

The Group’s operations are all located in the United Kingdom and all revenue 1s generated within the United

Kingdom

5. Finance income

Bank interest receivable

Investment income earned as finance assets, analysed by category of asset 1s as follows

Loans and recewables (including cash and bank balances)

6. Finance costs

Interest on obligations under hire purchase
Interest on bank loans
Less amount included in the cost of qualifying assets

Deemed interest on acquisition
Total interest expense

2007 2006
£000 £000
436 155
436 155
2007 2006
£'000 £000
2 3

100 34

- (30)

102 7
100 109
202 116
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7 Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

The loss on ordinary activities before taxation i1s stated after charging / (crediting)

2007 2006

£000 £000
Research and development costs 53 15
Depreciation
- owned 570 292
- held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 9 18
Auditors’ remuneration
- audit services 16 20
- non audit services 23 7
Release of other creditors — site provision - {180)
Loss / (profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 10 (3)
Share based payments charge 224 173
Operating lease costs
- land & buildings 176 176
- hire of plant and equipment 8 8
- motor vehicles 27 27

A more detalled analysis of auditors’ remuneration for non audit services I1s provided below

2007 2006

£°000 £'000
Tax advisory 3 3
Other advisory 5 4
Audit of subsidiary undertakings 15 -
Total 23 7

in addition to the above, there has been £33,000 of non audit fees relating to the working capital review n relation
to the fundraising These costs have been charged against the share premium account

8. Employee costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows 2007 2006
£000 £000

Wages and salaries 1,410 981
Social securty costs 142 115
Pension costs 685 44
Equity settled share based payment charge 224 173
1,841 1,313

The average number of employees during the year was 2007 2006
Number Number

Directors 9 5
Sales 5 8
Engineering 5 3
Technical 3 1
Administrative 4 3
Site 9 8
Total 35 26
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The Group's equity-settied share-based payments comprise the Enterprise Management Incentive Share Option
Scheme The amount of shares held in the Employee Share Option plan and details of shares and share options
subject to equity-settled share based payment charges are set out in note 27

9. Directors’ remuneration, interests and transactions

Aggregate remuneration
The total amounts for Directors’ remuneration and other benefits were as follows

2007 2006
£000 £'000
Emoluments 613 297
Pension costs 39 26
Gain on exercise of share options 189 -
841 323
Directors’ remuneration shown above included the following amounts payable in respect of the highest paid
director
2007 2006
£°000 £000
Emoluments 148 120
Pension costs 16 9
164 129
Directors’ share options
Details of options held by directors at year end are as follows
Director Date Exercise Price Number of First Date of Expiry Date
Granted Shares Exercise
Dr A Heyworth 01 052001 £1300 56,731 02 05 2004 0105 2011
Dr A Heyworth 23 08 2005 £0370 132,122 24 08 2008 2308 2015
T Willis 0303 2005 £0 380 131,580 04 03 2008 03 03 2015
T Willis 23 08 2005 £0370 132,275 24 08 2008 2308 2015
T Willis 18 07 2007 £1130 120,721 19 07 2010 18 07 2017
M Fishwick 03 032005 £0 360 277,778 04 03 2008 0303 2015
M Fishwick 23 08 2005 £0 370 249,930 24 08 2008 23082015
M Fishwick 15 08 2006 £0700 230,000 16 08 2009 1508 2016
M Fishwick 18 07 2007 £1130 207,640 19 07 2010 18 07 2017
D Benjafield 15 02 2007 £1215 76,000 16 02 2010 1502 2017
Mike Orr 03 03 2005 £0 380 685,780 04 Q3 2008 0303 2015
Mike Orr 30 06 20086 £0 370 66,138 0t 07 2009 3006 2016
Mike Orr 15 08 2006 £0 700 57,509 16 08 2009 15 08 2016
Mike Orr 18 07 2007 £1130 53,117 19 07 2010 18 07 2017
Fergus Healy 17 10 2005 £0 370 181,818 18 10 2008 17 10 2015
Fergus Healy 17 10 2005 £0370 82,036 18 10 2008 17 10 2015
Jayne Pierre 1512 2008 £0715 189,427 16 12 2009 1512 2016
Jayne Pierre 18 07 2007 £1130 53,117 19 07 2010 18 07 2017
F Maudsley Drain 01 05 2001 £1 300 13,000 02 05 2004 01 05 2011
F Maudsley Dran 20 02 2003 £0 500 25,000 2102 2006 20022013
F Maudsley Drain 03 10 2003 £0 500 120,800 04 10 2006 03 102013
F Maudsley Drain 15 08 2006 £0 700 18,627 16 08 2009 1508 2016
F Maudsley Drain 18 07 2007 £1130 53,117 1907 2010 18 07 2017

The Group’s equity-settled share-based payments compnse the Enterprnise Management Incentive Share Option
Scheme The amount of shares held in the Employee Share Option plan and details of shares and share options
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subject to equity-settied share based payment charges are set out In note 27 The directors’ interests in the share

capital of the Company 1s disclosed in the Report of the Directors

10. Income tax

Current income tax
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years
Total income tax

The total credit for the year can be reconciied to the accounting loss as follows

Loss before tax

Income tax credit calculated at 30% (2006 30%)

Effect of income that 1s not chargeable in determining taxable profit
Losses surrendered for R&D tax credit

Repayable R&D tax credit

Movement in unprovided deferred tax asset

Effect of change In rate of deferred tax

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years

Income tax ncome recognised in the profit and loss

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax assets
R&.D tax credit recoverable

Unrecognised deferred tax asset

The following deferred tax assets have not been recognised at the balance sheet date

Tax losses
Accelerated tax depreciation
Temporary differences

2007 2006
£'000 £1000
(86) 61)
(86} ©1)
2007 2006
£'000 £'000
(3,120)  (1,318)
(936) (395)
(73) (77)
161 75
(86) (61)
611 397
237 -
(86) (61)
(86) CUE
2007 2006
£°000 £'000
(86) (61)
2007 2006
£7000 £'000
(4,145) (3,342)
619 372
(155) (100)
(3,681) (3,070)
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11. Loss per share

The loss per share i1s calculated by reference to the losses attributable to ordinary shareholders divided by the
weighted average of 45,111,984 ordinary shares for the 12 months to 31 December 2007, and 33,451,682 for the
12 months to 31 December 2006

2007 2006
£:000 £'000
Attributable loss {3,034) {1.257)
No. No
Average number of shares in 1ssue for basic and diluted loss per share 45,111,984 33 451,682
Loss per share {6.725p) (3757p)

The share options n 1ssue are anti-dilutive in respect of the basic loss per share calculation and have therefore not
been included

12. Goodwill
Goodwill
£'000
Cost and net book value
At 1 January 2006 2,270
At 31 December 2006 2,270
At 31 December 2007 2,270
The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated as follows
2007 2006
£'000 £000
Build, own and operate 2,270 2,270

The goodwill relates to the acquisition of the composting business in Perthshire 1n 2005
Annual test for impairment

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are incidents in that the goodwill might
be impaired

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (CGLU’s) are determined from value in use calculations The
key assumptions to the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to the selling prices and direct costs Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU's The growth
rates are based on the Directors’ growth forecasts calculated based on significant higher plant utilisation in 2008
due to a significant increase In sales and confidence in the growth of the market Changes in selling prices and
direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market

The recoverable amounts of the CGU’s has been determined based on a value in use calculation which uses
cashflow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Directors' covering a five year period, and a
discount rate of 8% per annum (2006 8%) The discount rate of 8% Is consistent with the rate of return expected
by the market considering the CGU’s forecast cashflow amounts, timing and nisk profile Cashflows beyond that
five year penod have been extrapolated using a steady 2 5% per annum growth rate (2006 2 5%) which 1s based
on historic trends, anticipated market demand and the prospective increase in landfill tax over the period
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13. Other intangible assets

Cost

At 1 January 2006, 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2007

Amortisation

At 1 January 2006, 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2007

Net book amount
31 December 2007

At 31 December 2006

At 1 January 2006

Intellectual Property Rights

£'000

40

40

The intellectual property rights represent the purchase of an innovative system of accelerated composting for
£35,000 and the design of the Twin Cage Compaster for £5,000

14. Property, plant and equipment

Vehicles Plant and Fixtures Silo-Cage Assets inthe Freehold Total
Machinery and Systems course of land and
fittings construction buildings
{ deferred
development
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2006 98 379 100 755 - - 1,330
Additions - 2086 9 1,528 3,024 2,081 6,848
Disposals {24) {38) - (8) - - (68)
At 31 December 2006 72 547 109 2,277 3,024 2,081 8110
Additions - 589 34 1,471 5 738 2,837
Disposals - (27) (21) {1 - - {49)
Transfer - 335 - 418 {3,013) 2,260 -
At 31 December 2007 72 1,444 122 4,165 16 5,079 10,858
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2006 62 68 45 61 - - 236
Charge for the year 18 95 15 182 - - 310
Disposals (22) (8) - - - - (30)
At 31 December 2006 58 155 60 243 - - 516
Charge for the year 14 247 14 225 - 79 579
Disposals - 21 (15) - - - (36)
Transfer - - - (78) - 78 -
At 31 December 2007 72 381 59 390 - 157 1,059
Net book amount
At 31 December 2007 - 1,063 63 3,775 16 4,922 9,839
At 31 December 2006 14 392 49 2,034 3,024 2,081 7,594
At 1 January 2008 34 311 55 694 - - 1,094
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Assets in the course of construction include capitalised interest of £Nil (2006 £30,000)

Assels pledged as security

Freehold land with a carrying value of £2,081,000 (2006 £2,081,000) has been pledged to secure the term loan of
the Group (see note 20) Plant and equipment with a carrying value of £70,000 (2008 £81,000) has been pledged
as security for the bank loan The Group 1s not allowed to pledge these assets as secunty for other borrowings or
to sell them to another entity

In addition, the Group's cbligation under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets, which
have a carrying amount of £40,000 (2006 £14,000)

During the year, the Group carried out a review of the recoverable amount of its plant and machinery and its Silo-
Cage systems The assets are used in the Group’s reportable segments The review did not lead to a recogrition
of an impairment The recoverable amounts of the CGU's has been determined based on a value in use
calculation which uses cashflow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Directors covenng a five
year period, and a discount rate of 8% per annum (2006 8%) Cashflows beyond that five year period have been
extrapolated using a steady 2 5% per annum growth rate which 1s based on historic trends, anticipated market
demand and the prospective increase in landfill tax over the pencd

15. Inventories

2007 2006
£°000 £'000
Raw materials 172 6
Work in progress 13 311
Consumables 49 39
234 356
There were no write downs of iInventory in the year (2006 £Nil)
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense In the year was £ENil {2006 £Nil)
16. Trade and other receivables
2007 2006
£'000 E'000
Trade recevables 538 456
Other recervables 45 150
Prepayments and accrued income 523 42
1,106 648

The average credit period taken on trade recewvables excluding retention and deferred income 1s 67 days (2006 47
days) Trade receivables do not carry interest No provision (2006 £Nil) has been made for overdue recewvables
as all amounts are considered recoverable

Before accepting any new customers, the Group uses an external credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer's credit qualty and defines credit imits by customer Limits attnbuted to customers are reviewed twice a
year

The proportion of trade receivables balance relating to customers who represent more than 5% of the total 1s
disclosed in note 22 None of the Group's trade recevable balances are past due (2006 £Nil)
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17. Cash and cash equivalents

2007 2006
£°000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 8,916 2,242

The effective interest rate on short term deposits for the year ended 31 December 2007 1s 5 5% (2006 5%)

18 Construction contracts

Contracts In progress at balance sheet date

2007 20086
£°000 £'000
Construchion costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date 882 1,909
Less progress billings (750) (1,909)
132 -

Recognised and included n the financial statements as amounts due
From customers under construction contracts 342 315

At 31 December 2007, retentions held by customers for contract work amounted to £186,000 (2006 £211,000)

19. Trade and other payables

2007 2006
£°000 £000
Trade payables 646 940
Other payables - 11
Other taxation and social security 63 34
Accruals and deferred income 375 170
1,084 1,155

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding from trade purchases and ongoing costs
The average credit period taken for trade purchases 1s 83 days (2006 99 days) No interest 1s charged on the
trade payables The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to therr fair value
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20. Borrowings

Current Non-current
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £000 £'000 £000

Secured - at amortised cost
Bank loans (1) 142 142 7 213
Term loan (It) - - 2,000 -
Hire Purchase agreements (1) 8 14 28 -
150 156 2,099 213

Summary of borrowing arrangements

() Secured on plant and equipment The bank lcan Is repayable over a remaining 24 equal monthly instalments

The interest rate 1s fixed at 4 3% per annum

(n) Secured against freehold land  The term loan 1s repayable over 180 equal monthly instalments The interest

rate on the facility 1s 1 756% above the Bank of Scotland Plc base rate

(m) Secured by the leased assets The borrowings are at fixed interest rates with repayment penods not

exceeding 4 years

21. Deferred consideration

Current Non-current

2007 2006 2007 2006

£'000 £000 £°000 £'000

Deferred consideration 300 300 1,950 2,250
Deferred consideration discounted element {48) (33) (365) {480)
252 267 1,685 1,770

The deferred consideration relates to the acquisition of the Binns Skips composting business in Perthshire in 2005
The consideration 1s payable in equal quarterly instalments over a remaining penacd of 8 years
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22, Financial Instruments

Capital nsk management

The Group manages capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through optimisation of the debt and equity balance

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 20, cash and
cash equivalents disclosed In note 17 and equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent as disclosed in note 23

The disclosure of the gearing ratio has not been included on the basis that the Group was in a net funds position at
both 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting pelicies and methods adopted, including the cniteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial
asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements

Treasury policies and financial risk

Surplus funds are intended to support short term working capital requirements These funds are invested through
the use of short term and period deposits, with a policy of maximising fixed interest returns as well as providing the
flexibility required to fund on-going operations It 15 not a Group policy to invest in financial denvatives

Although the financial nsks are considered to be minimal at present, future interest rate, iquidity and foreign
currency nsks could arise and the Board will review its existing polictes in the coming penod

Categories of financial instruments

2007 2006
£'000 £'000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables 10,022 2,890
Financial liabilities
Other financial habilities 3,270 1,490

Interest rate nsk management
The Group i1s exposed to interest rate nsk as the Group borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates
Interest rate nsk arises from
»  The fixed element of finance leases where the Group typically uses finance leases for fixed penods of up to
5 years to finance the purchase of assets where it 1s considered to be a more effectve use of funds, and
» The term loan facility which bears a floating interest rate
» Cash and short term deposits which bear floating interest rates

Other bank loans are subject to fixed interest rates

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis 1s prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was

outstanding for five months since draw down If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
vanables were held constant, the Group’s loss for the ended 31 December 2007 would increase/decrease by
£4 200 (2006 increase/decrease by £Nil) This 1s atiributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its
variable rate borrowings
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At 31 December 2007, the Group's habilittes have contractual matunties which are summarised below

Current Non-current
within 6to12 105 Later
6 months months years than 5 years

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 20086 2007 2006
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Long-term bank loans 155 80 155 80 1,050 321 2,447 -
Finance lease cbligations 7 10 7 5 36 - - -
Trade payables 571 940 - - 75 - - -
Other short-term financial labilities 303 170 - - - - - -
Totals 1,036 1,200 162 85 1,161 321 2,447 -

The above contractual matunites reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ to the carrying values of the
liabilities at the balance sheet date

Credit risk management

Credit nisk refers to the credit nsk that a counterparty wil! default on its contractual obligations resulting 1n financial
loss to the Group The principal credit nsk arnses from the Group's trade recewvables The trade receivable
balance of £538,000 (2006 £456,000) includes 6 (2006 4) customers who represent more than 5% of the total
balance At 31 December 2007, 80% (20068 63%) of the trade receivables balance related to these customers In
order to manage credit nsk, the Directors set imits for customers based on a combination of payment history, third
party credit references and an independent rating agency The Group's exposure and the credit rating of its
counterparties are continuously monitored Credit exposure s contrelled by counterparty mits that are reviewed
bi-annually

Ongoing credit evaluation 1s performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable

Liquidity nsk management
The Group seeks to manage financial nisk by ensuring sufficient hquidity 1s available to meet foreseeable needs
and to invest cash assets safely and profitably

Surplus funds are invested on a short term basis at money market rates and therefore such funds are available at
short notice

Foreign currency risk management
The Group deoes not have any foreign currency denominated trade receivables or payables and therefore i1s not
subject to foreign exchange risk

Borrowing facilities

In 2006 a bank loan of £426,000 was secured against plant and equipment This loan 15 repayable in 36 equal
instalments at a fixed interest rate of 4 3% The outstanding balance at 31 December 2007 was £213,000 (2006
£355,000)

In addition to the above, further facilities of £2,000,000 {2006 £Nil) have been secured to help fund the acquisition

of the property and the development costs of the Todmorden project The floating interest rate on the term loan 1s
1 75% above the Bank of Scotland Plc base rate
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Interest rate risk profile of financial assets and liabilities

Interest rate

Fixed Floating Zero Total
Financial assets £000 £°000 £000 £°000
At December 2007
Sterling - 8,861 55 8,916
Financial liabilities
At December 2007
Bank loan 213 - - 213
Term loan - 2,000 - 2,000
Hire purchase agreements 36 - - 36
249 2,000 - 2,249

Fair value of financial assets and financial habilities

The farr value based upon the market value or discounted cash flows, of the financial instruments detailed above

was not matenaily different from the book values

23 lIssued capital

Authorised
100,000,000 Ordinary shares of £0 05 each

Allotted, called up and fully paid

48,288,381 (2006 38,045,381} Ordinary shares of £0 05 each

At 1 January 2006

Issue of shares at £0 70 per share

Issue of shares under employee share option plan
At 31 December 2006

Issue of shares at £1 10 per share

Issue of shares under employee share option plan
At 31 December 2007

2007 2006
£000 £000
5,000 5,000
2,414 1,902

Number £000
26,385,381 1,319
11,500,000 575

160,000 8
38,045,381 1,902
10,000,000 500

243,000 12
48,288 381 2414

On 23 Apni 2007, the Company placed 10,000,000 new ordinary shares of £0 05 at a price of £1 10 per share,
raising £11,000,000 before issue costs of £628,571 The difference between the total consideration of £11,000,000
and the total nominal value of £500,000 and related issue cost of £628,571 has been credited to the share
premium account In addition, on 30 April 2007 and 3 May 2007, 168,000 and 75,000 shares respectively were
iIssued pursuant to share options that were exercised at a price of £0 50 and £0 35 respectively
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In accordance with the terms of the Company share option schemes, options granted and remaining in 1ssue are as

Date Granted Exercise Price First Date of Expiry Date  Number of Shares
Exercise

29 11 1999 £0 850 30 11 2002 29 11 2009 12,000
01 05 2001 £1300 02 05 2006 01 05 2011 69,731
22 04 2002 £1150 23 04 2007 2204 2012 25,000
20 02 2003 £0 500 2102 2006 2002 2013 25,000
03 10 2003 £0 500 04 10 2006 03 102013 120,300
03 03 2005 £0 380 04 03 2008 03 032015 355,235
03 03 2005 £0 360 04 03 2008 03 032015 277,778
23 08 2005 £0 370 24 08 2008 23082015 514,327
17 10 2005 £0 370 18 10 2008 17 102015 263,854
30 06 2006 £0 370 01 07 2008 30 06 2016 66,138
15 08 2006 £0 700 16 08 2009 1508 2016 328,063
15 12 2006 £0 715 16 12 2009 1512 2016 189,427
15 02 2007 £1125 16 02 2010 1502 2017 76,000
18 07 2007 £1130 19 07 2010 18 07 2017 487,712
2,810,565

The mid market price of the Company’s shares on 31 December 2007 was 75 pence The highest and lowest mid
market prices during the year were 145 pence and 74 5 pence respectively

Capital management pohcies and procedures

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entihes in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity balance The strategy remains
unchanged from 2006

24. Subsidiaries

Detalls of the Company's subsidianes at 31 December 2007 are as follows

Name of subsidiary Place of Proportion Proportion Principal activity
iIncorporation of of voting
and ownership power
operation interest held
% %
TEG Environmentai Limited England and 100 100 Design, build and
Wales operation of TEG
owned facilities and
the sale of Silo-cage
plants to third parties
Natural Organic Fertiiser Company Limited England and 100 100 End product
Wales placement
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25, Interest in joint ventures

The Group has a 50% share in the ownership of Verdia Horticulture Limited, a joint venture company established in
the United Kingdom The following amounts show the Group’s share of the results and the Group's share of assets
and labilites relating to the investment in Verdia Horticulture Limited

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current habilities

Non-current habilities
Group's share of net habilities

Total revenue
Total loss for the year
Group's share of the loss

26. Operating lease arrangements

Operating leases payments recognised as an expense In the year

2007 2006
£'000 £'000
2007 2006
£'000 £'000
2007 2006

£'000 £000

211 211

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non

cancellable operating leases, which fall due as foliows

- within one year
- in the second to fifth years inclusive
- after five years

Land and buildings Other
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £'000 £000 £000
176 176 43 36
704 704 31 49
499 675 - -
1,379 1,665 74 85

Leases of land and bulldings are typically subject to rent reviews at specific intervals and provide for the lessee to

pay all Insurance, maintenance and repair costs

48




27. Share based payments

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Group has a share option scheme for all employees of the Group Options are exercisable at a price equal to
the average quoted market price of the Company’'s shares on the date of grant Options are forfeited f the
employee leaves the Group before the options vest The only performance critena relating to the options 1s the
continuing employment of the holder

The following reconcies the outstanding share options granted under the employee share option scheme at the
beginning and end of the financial year

2007 2007 2006 2006

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

share options average share options average

exercise price exercise price

£ £

Qutstanding at beginning of year 2,706,776 0.64 2,283,148 044
Granted during the year 563,712 1.14 583,628 067
Exercised durnng the year (243,000) 0.50 {160,000) 035
Lapsed durnng the year (216,923) 130 - ~
Qutstanding at the end of the year 2,810,565 063 2,706,776 064
Exercisable at the end of the year 252,031 080 711,954 050

The options outstanding at 31 December 2007 had a weighted average exercise price of 63 pence In 2007,
options were granted on 15 February and 18 July The aggregate of the estimated farr values of the options
granted on those dates was £209,566 In 20086, options were granted on 30 June, 15 August and 15 December
The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granted on those dates was £171,230

The following share options under the employee share option scheme were exercised during the financial year

Number Exercised Share price at

exercised date exercise date

£

05/09/1997 75,000 03/05/2007 125

20/02/2003 50,000 30/04/2007 135

03/10/2003 118,000 30/04/2007 135
Total exercised during the year 243,000

No share options were exercised in 2006 The gain on share option exercised in 2007 relating to Directors 1s
disclosed in note 9

The fair value of the employees services received in exchange for the grant of share options 1s recognised as an
expense The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period cf three years 1s determined by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted Fair value 1s determined by reference to the Black-Scholes option pricing
model
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The inputs into the Black-Scholes option pricing model are as follows

2007 2006
Weighted average exercise price £0.60 £0 486
Expected volatility 38.34% - 104.98% 46 65% - 104 98%
Expected life 5 years 5 years
Risk-free rate 3.85% - 5.63% 385%-487%
Expected dividends 0.00% 0 00%

The volatiity of the Group’s share price on each date of grant was calculated as the average of volatilities of share
prices of companies n the peer group on the corresponding dates The volatility of share price of each company In
the peer group was calculated as the average of annualized standard dewviations of daily continuously compounded
returns on the Company's shares, calculated over 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 years back from the date of grant, where
applicable

The Group recognised total expenses of £224,000 (2006 £173,000) related to equity-settied share-based payment
transactions in the period

28. Retirement benefit plan
The Group operates a defined contnibution pension scheme The pension cost charge for the period represents
contributions payable by the Group to the scheme and amounted to £65,000 (2006 £44,000)

29. Capital Commitments
At 31 December 2007, the Group had outstanding capital commitments of £462 000 (2006 £971,000)

30. Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed In this note  Apart from those disclosed below, there are no
other related party transactions to be disclosed

Key management compensation
The remuneration of Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group, 1s set cut below, 1n
aggregate for each of the categortes spectfied in IAS24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’

2007 2006

£'000 £'000

Short term employee benefits 652 323
Charge to income n the year in respect of share based payments 224 173

31. Developments during the year

On 1 January 2007, the operations of the Group were restructured, such that the trade, assets and labilities of the
business were transferred from The TEG Group Plc to TEG Environmental Lirmited at book value for a
consideration of £9,610,000
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Company Balance sheet
as at 31 December 2007

Note 2007 Restated
2006
£'000
£'000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 3 - 2,057
Tangible assets 4 - 7,594
Investments 5 - -
- 9,651
Current assets
Stocks 6 - 356
Debtors 7 10,885 708
Cash at bank and in hand 8,714 2,244
19,599 3,308
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 8 {69) {1,578)
Net current assets 19,530 1,730
Total assets less current liabilities 19,530 11,381
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year g - (1,983)
Net assets 19,530 9,398
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 2,414 1,802
Share prermum account 13 29,357 19,388
Other reserve 13 460 327
Profit and loss account 13 (12,701) {(12,219)
Shareholders’ funds 14 19,530 $,398

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 2 Apnl 2008 and signed on their behalf by

WL "4\4\7
M Fishwick

Director
2 Aprl 2008
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Notes to the Company financial statements

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared \n accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (“UK GAAP”), under the historical cost convention As permitted by section 230 of
the Companies Act 1985, no separate profit and loss account has been presented in respect of the Company The
TEG Group Plc reported a loss for the financial year of £482,000 (2006 restated £1,470,000)

As permitted by FRS 1 “Cash Flow Statements {Revised)”, no cash flow statement has been prepared as the cash
fiows of the Company are included in the consolidated financial statements of The TEG Group Plc which are
publcly availlable The consolidated financial statements of The TEG Group Plc, which are presented separately,
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies of the Company, applied under UK GAAP, have remained unchanged during the
year with the exception of the capitalisation of finance costs attributable to the construction of tangible fixed assets
{see note 13) The directors have reviewed the accounting policies in accordance with FRS 18 and believe them to
be the most appropriate to the Company

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation net of any provision for impairment
Finance costs on fixed assets additions are capitalised during the period of construction and are wnitten off as part
of the total cost No depreciation 1s charged during the penod of construction Depreciation 1s calculated to write
down the cost of all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land over therr expected useful economic lives The
rates generally apphcable are

Vehicles 3 years straight ine
Plant and machinery  25% reducing balance
Fixtures and fittings 25% reducing balance
Silo-Cage systems 15 years straight line

Goodwill

Purchased goodwill representing the excess of the farr value of the consideration over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired i1s capitalised and 15 amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful
economic life

Amortisation
Amortisation 15 calculated so as to write off the cost of an intangible fixed asset, less its estimated residual value,
over the useful economic Iife of that asset as follows

Intellectual Property Rights 10 years straight line
Goodwill 11 years straight line

Goodwill s amortised over the useful economic Iife of the asset to which It relates

Investments
Investments are included at cost less any provisien for impairment

Stocks and work 1n progress
Stocks and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making allowance for
obsclete and slow moving items

Costs include matenals, direct labour and an attnbutable proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal

levels of activity Net realisable value 1s based on estimated selling price, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion
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Notes to the Company financial statements

Financial instruments
Fimnancial liabilihes and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into

A financial hability exists where there 1s a contractual obiigation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another
entity, or to exchange financial assets or financial habilihes under potentially unfavourable conditions

Finance costs and gains or losses relating to financial habilites are included n the profit and loss account The
carrying amount of the hability 1s increased by the finance cost and reduced by payments made in respect of that
liability Finance costs are calculated so as to produce a constant rate of charge on the outstanding hability

An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting
all of its liabilities

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 1s recognised on all tming differences where the transactions or events that give the Company an
obltgation to pay more tax in the future, or a right to pay less in the future, have occurred by the balance sheet
date Deferred tax assets are recognised when it 1s more lkely than not that they will be recovered Deferred tax 1s
measured using rates of tax that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Leased assets

Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are capitalised in the balance sheet and depreciated
over therr expected useful lives The interest element of leasing payments represents a constant proportion of the
capital balance outstanding and I1s charged to the profit and loss account over the period of the lease

All other leases are regarded as operating leases and the payments made under them are charged to the profit and
loss account on a straight line basis over the lease term

Research and development costs
Costs relating to research and product development are written off as incurred

Share based payments

In accordance with FRS 20, the farr value of equity-settled share-based payments to ermnployees i1s determined at
the date of grant and 15 expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Company's estimate
of shares or ophons that will eventually vest In the case of options granted, fair value 18 measured by the Black-
Scholes pricing model  In accordance with the transitional provisions, FRS 20 has been applied only to grants of
equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that had not vested at 1 January 2005 Further details are set out in
note 12

Share options granted to the employees of TEG Environmental Limited have not been accounted for within these
parent company financials statements, as the share based payment charge has been recognised 1n the subsidiary
undertaking's financial statements

Contribution to pension funds

The pension costs charged against profits represents the amount of the contributions payable to the defined
contribution scheme in respect of the accounting pernod
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" Notes to the Company financial statements

2. Directors and employees

3.

Staff costs duning the year were as follows

2007 2006

£°000 £'000

Wages and salaries 358 981
Social security costs 33 115
Pension costs 31 44
Equity settled share based payment charge 133 173
555 1,313

The average number of employees during the year was 2007 2006
Number Number

Directors 5 5
Sales 6
Engineering - 3
Technical - 1
Administrative - 3
Site - 8
Total 5 26

Directors’ remuneration disclosure Is incluged in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements

The Company's equity-settled share-based payments compnse the Enterprise Management Incentive Share
Option Scheme The amount of shares beld in the Employee Share Option plan and detaills of shares and share
options subject to equity-settied share based payment charges are set outin note 12

Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill  Intellectual Total
Property
Rights
£'000 £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January 2007 2,341 40 2,381
Transferred to subsidiary undenrtaking (2,341) (40) (2,381)
At 31 December 2007 - - -
Amortisation
At 1 January 2007 284 40 324
Transferred to subsidiary undertaking (284) {40) (324)
At 31 December 2007 - - -
Net book amount
At 31 December 2007 - - -
At 31 December 2006 2,057 - 2,057
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Notes to the Company financial statements

4. Tangible fixed assets

Vehicles  Plant and Fixtures Silo- Assetsinthe Freehold Total
Machinery and Cage course of land
fittings Systems  construction
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2007 as 72 547 109 2,277 2,994 2,081 8,080
previously reported
Finance costs - - - - 30 - 30
capitalised
At 1 January 2007 72 547 109 2,277 3,024 2,081 8,110
(restated)
Transferred to (72) (547) (109) (2,277) (3,024) (2,081) (8,110)
subsidiary undertaking
At 31 December 2007 - - - - - - -
Depreciation
At 1 January 2007 58 155 60 243 - - 516
Transferred to (58) {155) (60) (243) - - (516)
subsidiary undertaking
At 31 December 2007 - - - - - - -
Net book amount
At 31 December 2007 - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2006 14 392 49 2,034 3,024 2,081 7,594

5. Investments

Subsidiary Joint
undertaking venture

£ £
Cost
At 1 January 2007 2 -
Additions - 50
At 31 December 2007 2 50

On 26 July 2007, the Company subscribed to 50% of the share capital of Verdia Horliculture Limited for a
consideration of £50

At 31 December 2007, the Company held 20% or more of the allotted share capital of the following comparues

Company name Country of Shareholding Shareholding Principal business

Incorporation % £ activities

TEG Environmental Limited UK 100% 4 Design and construction

of Silo-Cage plants

Natural Organic Fertiliser UK 100% 1 End product placement
Company Limited

Verdia Horticulture Limited UK 50% 50 Producer of high qualty

horticultural and
amenity products
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_Notes to the Company financial statements

8. Stocks
2007 2006
£'000 £000
Raw materials - 6
Work in progress - 311
Consumables - 39
- 356
7. Debtors
2007 20086
£'000 £000
Trade debtors - 456
Other debtors 18 150
R&D tax credit recoverable 29 61
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 10,624 -
Prepayments and accrued income 214 41
10,885 708
8. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2007 2008
£'000 £000
Deferred consideration - 300
Deferred consideration discounted element - {33)
- 267
Trade creditors 8 941
Other creditors - 1
Other taxation and social security 16 34
Bank loan - 142
Hire purchase agreements - 14
Accruals and deferred income 45 170
69 1,578
9. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2007 2006
£'000 £000
Deferred consideration - 2,250
Deferred consideration - discounted element - (480)
- 1,770
Bank loan - 213
Hire purchase agreements - -
- 1,983
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" Notes to the Company financial statements

-

10. Borrowings

Borrowings are repayable as follows

2007 2006
£'000
£'000
Within one year
Hire purchase agreements - 14
Bank loan - 142
After one and within two years
Hire purchase agreements - -
Bank loan - 142
Between two and five years
Bank loan - 71
- 369
11. Share capital
2007 2006
£'000 £'000
Authorised
100,000,000 Ordinary shares of £0 05 each 5,000 5,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
48,111,984 (2006 38,045,381) Ordinary shares of £0 05 each 2,414 1,902

On 23 Apni 2007, the Company placed 10,000,000 new ordinary shares of £0 05 at a price of £1 10 per share,
raising £11,000,000 before 1ssue costs of £628,571 The difference between the total consideration of £11,000,000
and the total nominal value of £500,000 and related 1ssue cost of £628,571 has been credited to the share
premium account in addition, on 30 April 2007 and 3 May 2007, 168,000 and 75,000 shares respectively were
1ssued pursuant to share options that were exercised at a price of £0 50 and £0 35 respectively

In accordance with the terms of the Company share optien schemes, options granted and remaining in 1ssue are as

follows
Date Granted Exercise Price First Date of Expiry Date  Number of Shares
Exercise

01 05 2001 £1 300 02 05 2006 0105 2011 56,731
03 03 2005 £0 380 04 03 2008 03032015 131,580
03 03 2005 £0 360 04 03 2008 03 03 2015 277,778
23 08 2005 £0 370 24 08 2008 23082015 514,327
15 08 2006 £0 700 16 08 2009 15 08 2016 230,000
15 02 2007 £1125 16 02 2010 15 02 2017 76,000
18 07 2007 £1130 19 07 2010 18 07 2017 328,361
1,614,777

The mid market price of the Company’s shares on 31 December 2007 was 75 pence The highest and lowest mid

market prices dunng the year were 145 pence and 74 5 pence respechively
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Notes to the Company financial statements

12. Share based payments

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company has a share option scheme for all employees of the Company Options are exercisable at a price
equal to the average quoted market price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant Options are forfeited If the
employee leaves the Company before the options vest The only performance critena relating to the options 1s the
continuing employment of the holder

2007 2007 2006 2006

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

share average share options average

options  exercise price exercise price

£ £

Outstanding at beginning of year 2,706,776 0.64 2,283,148 044
Transferred to subsidiary undertaking (1,421,360) 064 - -
Granted dunng the year 404,361 115 583,628 067
Exercised during the year {75,000) 0.35 {160,000) 035
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,614,777 073 2,706,776 064
Exercisable at the end of the year 56,731 1.30 711,954 0 50

The options outstanding at 31 December 2007 had & weighted average exercise price of 73 pence In 2007,
options were granted on 15 February and 18 July The aggregate of the estmated fair values of the options
granted on those dates was £152,000 In 2006, options were granied on 15 August The aggregate of the
estimated fair values of the options granted on those dates was £70,000

The fair value of the employees services received i exchange for the grant of share options 1s recognised as an
expense The total amount to be expensed over the vesting penod of three years 1s determined by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted Fair value 1s determined by reference to the Black-Schales option pricing
model

The inputs into the Black-Scholes option pricing model are as follows

2007 2006
Weighted average exercise price £0.60 £0 46
Expected volatility 38.34% - 104.98% 46 65% - 104 98%
Expected life 5 years 5 years
Risk-free rate 3.85% - 5.63% 385%-487%
Expected dividends 0 00% 0 00%

The volatility of the Company's share price on each date of grant was calculated as the average of volatiities of
share prices of companies in the peer group on the corresponding dates The volatility of share price of each
company In the peer group was calculated as the average of annualized standard dewiations of daily continuously
compounded returns on the Company’s shares, calculated over 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 years back from the date of grant,
where applicable

The Company recognised total expenses of £133,000 (2006 £173,000) related to equity-settled share-based
payment transactions in the period

The Company has applied the requirements of ‘FRS 20 Share-based Payments’ |In accordance with the transition

provisions, FRS 20 has been applied only to grants If equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested as at 1 January 2005
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: Notes to the Company financial statements

-

13. Reserves

Share Other Profit and

premium reserves loss

account account

£000 £'000 £'000

At 1 January 2007 as previously reported 19,388 327 {12,249)
Prior year adjustment - - 30
At 1 January 2007 (restated) 19,388 327 (12,219)
Loss for the financial year - - (482)
Gross premium on allotment 10,598 - -
Issue costs {629) - -
FRS 20 share option charge - 133 -
At 31 December 2007 29,357 460 (12,701)

‘Other reserves’ anses on the grant of share options to employees under the share optien ptan Further information
about share-based payments to employees 1s set out in note 12

Prior year results have heen restated following a change in the Company’s accounting policy in respect of finance
costs incurred on fixed assets in the course of construction, which are now capitalised Htstorically, such costs
were charged directly to the profit and loss account dunng the penod in which they were incurred Comparative
figures have been restated to reflect the revised basis of preparation The effect of the prior year adjustment 1s as

follows
2006 2006 2006
As Prior year As restated
previously  adjustment £'000
reported £'000
£'000
Company profit and loss

Loss before taxation (1,561) 30 (1,5831)
Taxation 81 - 61
Loss after taxation (1,500) 30 (1,470)

Tangible Shareholders’

fixed assets funds
£'000 £'000

Company balance sheet
2006 as previously reported 7,564 9,368
Prior year adjustment 30 30
2006 as restated 7,594 9,398
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Notes to the Company financial statements

171. Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds

Restated
2006 2008
£ £
Loss for the financial year (482) {1,470)
Issue of shares 10,481 7,661
FRS 20 share option charge 133 173
Net addition to shareholders' funds 10,132 6,365
Opening shareholders’ funds 9,398 3,033
Closing shareholders’ funds 19,530 9,398
15. Leasing commitments
2007 Land Other 2006 Land Other
and buildings and buildings
£°000 £000 £000
£°000
- within one year - - - -
- within two to five years - - - 36
- In five years or more 36 - 176 -
36 - 176 36

16.

17,

18.

19.

Pension scheme

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme The pension cost charge for the penod represents
contributions payable by the Company to the scheme and amounted to £31,000 (2006 £44,000)

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2007, the Company had outstanding capital comrmitments of £Nil (2006 £971,000)

Related party transactions

No transactions with related parties were undertaken such as are required to be disclosed under Financial

Reporting Standards 8

Developments during the year

On 1 January 2007, the operations of the Group were restructured, such that the trade, assets and liabilities of the
business were fransferred from The TEG Group Plc to TEG Environmental Limited at book value for a

consideration of £9,610,000
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